

# Manual of Psychiatric Nursing Competencies

by

Dr. Amal Khalil

Faculty of Nursing, Menoufyia University, Egypt Currently working at College of Nursing, King Saud Bin Abdulaziz University for Health Sciences, Jeddah, Saudi Arabia

Horizon Research Publishing, USA

Title: Manual of Psychiatric Nursing Competencies

Author: Amal Khalil

**Edition:** The First Edition

#### Published by:

Horizon Research Publishing 2880 ZANKER RD STE 203 SAN JOSE, CA 95134

USA

http://www.hrpub.org Printed on acid-free paper

**ISBN:** 978-1-943484-19-5

**Price:** \$39 USA per copy

#### **General Enquiries**

Publish with HRPUB, learn about our policies, submission guidelines etc.

Email: book@hrpub.org

#### Disclaimer:

This book contains information obtained from authentic and highly credible sources. Reprinted material is quoted with permission, and sources are indicated. A wide variety of references are listed. Reasonable efforts have been made to publish reliable data and information. The author and the publisher are not responsible for the validity of all materials or for the consequences of their use.

#### **Trademark**

Product or corporate names may be trademarks or registered trademarks, and are used only for identification and explanation without intent to infringe.

#### Copyright © 2018 Horizon Research Publishing Co., LTD

This work is subject to copyright. All rights reserved. No part of this book may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording or by any information storage and retrieval system, without written permission from the author, except for the inclusion of brief quotations in a review.

#### Introduction

This student manual is compiled to include the essential clinical nursing skills based on specific needs of the students to master the course content in Psychiatric Nursing. This is to be used exclusively in the clinical setting/skills lab for this course. This manual of psychiatric nursing competencies will fulfill an important requirement of the nurses in order to work with psychiatric patient.

The student manual provides up-to-date, evidence-based basic clinical skills related to the essential aspects of psychiatric patient care. The skills in this student manual are based on the latest research findings and directives from clinical experts. This will enable the students to be confident in their basic skills and lead them to be qualified nurses to provide the best possible care to their patients.

This manual is based on the four of the basics skills domains such as communication skills, nurse patient relationship, and ethical aspects and legal practices necessary to deal with psychiatric patients. The second part is concerned with components of clinical psychiatric assessment including history taking, and mental status examination. The third part is concerned with symptom management such as hallucination, delusion, suicide and aggressive patient management. The last part is concerned with treatment modalities involving medication, ECT, activity therapy and how to conduct psycho-education for psychiatric patient.

#### Introduction

Contents Page No.

Introduction	I
Chapter 1. Basic Skills	1
1.1. Communication and Interviewing Skills	2
1.1.1. Context of therapeutic communication	
1.1.2. Nonverbal Communication: Body Language	
1.1.3. Components of nonverbal communication	
1.1.4. Non-therapeutic Communication Techniques	
1.2. Therapeutic Nurse-patient Relationship	
1.2.1. The Philosophical base of Nurse patient relationship:	
1.2.2. Conditions essential to development of a therapeutic relation:	
1.2.3. Phases of Nurse patient relationship:	
1.3. Ethical Issues and Legal Practices in Psychiatric Nursing	
Chapter 2. Assessment Skills	25
2.1. History Taking	26
2.2. Mental state Examination (MSE)	33
Chapter 3. Symptoms Management	43
3.1. Nursing Management of Patient with Hallucination	44
3.2. Nursing Management of Patient with Delusion	49
3.3. Nursing Management for Suicidal Patient	54
3.4. Nursing Management for Aggressive Patient	61
3.5. Physical Restraint Application	68
Chapter 4. Treatment Modalities	75
4.1. Non-pharmacological: Activity Therapy	76
4.1.1. Activity Done with Psychiatric Patient	76
4.2. Conducting Psycho-education	85
4.3. Pharmacological Treatment Modalities	90
4.4. Somatic Therapies	96
Acknowledgements	103
REFERENCES	105

# Chapter 1. Basic Skills

#### 1.1. Communication and Interviewing Skills

- 1.1.1. Context of therapeutic communication
- 1.1.2. Nonverbal Communication: Body Language
- 1.1.3. Components of nonverbal communication
- 1.1.4. Non-therapeutic Communication Techniques

#### 1.2. Theraputic Nurse –Patient Relationship

- 1.2.1The Philosophical base of Nurse patient relationship
- 1.2.2 Conditions essential to development of a therapeutic relation
- 1.2.3 Phases of Nurse patient relationship.
  - 1.2.3.1 The pre-interaction phase
  - 1.2.3.2 Orientation Stage
  - 1.2.3.3 Three Phases of Nurse-Client Relationship
  - 1.2.3.4 Termination/ Resolution Stage

#### 1.3. Ethical and Legal Practices of Psychiatric Nursing

# 1.1. Communication and Interviewing Skills

Interpersonal communication is the process by which people exchange information, feelings, and meaning through verbal and non-verbal messages: it is face-to-face communication. Interpersonal communication is not just about what is actually said - the language used - but how it is said and the non-verbal messages sent through tone of voice, facial expressions, gestures and body language. Communication is the main tool to assess, diagnose and to make an intervention.

In the transactional model, both participants perceive and, listen to each other, and simultaneously engage in the process of creating meaning in a relationship, whilst focusing on the patient's issues and assisting them to learn new coping skills. (Towensend, 2009)

The therapeutic milieu is a scientific structuring of the environment in order to effect behavioral changes and to improve the psychological health and functioning of the individual. The therapeutic milieu is also an important structure to interact with the pychiatric patient as within this structured environment, the client is expected to learn adaptive coping, interaction, and relationship skills that can be generalized to other aspects of his or her life. (Fakhr-Movahedi, Negarandeh, & Salsali, 2012)

Therapeutic communication consists of verbal and nonverbal techniques that focuses on the client's needs and promotes of healing and change. Additionally, it encourages the exploration of feelings and fosters understanding of behavioral motivation, promotes trust, discourages defensiveness, and is nonjudgmental. (Papadantonaki, 2012)

#### 1.1.1. Context of therapeutic communication

1. Values, attitudes, and beliefs that govern communications <u>for example</u> Attitudes of prejudice are expressed through negative stereotyping.

Culture or religion

# 2. Cultural mores, norms, ideas, and customs provide the basis for ways of thinking for example Social status

High-status persons often convey their high-power position with gestures of hands on hips, power dressing, greater height, and more distance when communicating with individuals considered being of lower social status.

- **3. Gender:** Masculine and feminine gestures influence messages conveyed in communication with others.
- **4. Age or developmental level: For example:** The influence of developmental level on communication is especially evident during adolescence, with words

such as "cool," "awesome," and others.

# 5. Territoriality, density, and distance, are aspects of environment that communicate messages.

- Territoriality the innate tendency to own space
- Density the number of people within a given environmental space
- Distance the means by which various cultures use space to communicate
- Proxemics: Use of space
- Intimate distance the closest distance that individuals allow between themselves and other
- Personal distance -the distance for interactions that are personal in nature, such as close conversation with friends
- Social distance the distance for conversation with strangers or acquaintances
- Public distance the distance for speaking in public or yelling to someone some distance away

#### 1.1.2. Nonverbal Communication: Body Language

#### 1.1.3. Components of nonverbal communication

- Physical appearance and dress
- Body movement and posture
- Touch
- Facial expressions
- Eve behavior
- Vocal cues or paralanguage

<u>Table (1)</u> states some examples of therapeutic communication techniques that could be used with patients and will help the nurse in understanding patient's behavior, concerns, feelings and needs.

*	ication techniques that help the patient to express his needs and		
feelings:			
Offering self	The nurse offers his or her presence, interest, and desire to understand without making any demands on the patient.  • "We can sit here quietly; there's no need to talk unless you		
	want to."		
	• "I'll sit with you awhile."		
Active Listening	To listen actively is to be attentive to what client is saying, both		
	verbally and nonverbally.		
	Several nonverbal behaviors have been designed as facilitative		
	skills for attentive listening.		
	S – Sit squarely facing the client.		
	O – Observe an open posture.		
	L – Lean forward toward the client.		
	E – Establish eye contact.		
	R – Relax.		
Giving Feedback	It is a reaction, without it, the sender of the message cannot know		
	whether the recipient has received the entire message or grasped		
	its intent. The need for feedback should be clearly understood.		
	Feedback is useful when it is:		

	descriptive rather than evaluative and focused on the behavior rather than on the client specific rather than general directed toward behavior that the client has the capacity to modify imparts information rather than offers advice well timed
Offering general leads	i.e. encourages the client to continue
Placing the event in time or sequence	i.e. clarifies the relationship of events in time
Making observations	<ul> <li>i.e. verbalizing what is observed or perceived or conveys concern and interest to the client while taking note of their behavior (e.g how they look, sound or act etc.).</li> <li>"I see you are quite anxious."</li> <li>"You keep rubbing you forehead; are you in discomfort.</li> </ul>
Encouraging description of perceptions	i.e. asking client to verbalize what is being perceived
Asking Relevant Questions	<ul> <li>i.e. Prompting patients to seek information by using:</li> <li>Open-ended questions: to allow client to take the lead in the conversation and give information</li> <li>Focused questions: used when more specific information is needed in an area.</li> <li>Closed-ended questions: elicit a yes, no, or one-word response. Most often they block communication, but can be useful when conversation gets off track</li> </ul>
Waiting in Silence	i.e. providing ample of time so that the client has time to verbalize feelings
Empathizing	•i.e. Understanding and accepting another person's reality, to accurately perceive feelings, and to communicate this understanding to others. Demonstrates warmth and acknowledges client's feelings  Example: "That must have been very difficult for you."
Accepting	i.e. verbalizing positive cues such as : Yes. Uh hum. I follow what you said! Nodding
Sharing Feelings/emotions:	i.e. Assisting clients to share feelings by making observations, acknowledging feelings, encouraging communication, giving permission to express negative feelings and modeling healthy emotional self-expression.
Sharing Hope:	i.e. Communicating a sense of possibility.
	ues used to understand the client expression:
Restating	Using different words to repeat the main idea the patient has expressed. For example:  • Pt.: "I couldn't sleep all night."  • Nurse: "You couldn't sleep all night." Or "You couldn't sleep all night?"  • Pt.: "My husband is very worried about me."  • Nurse: "Your husband is very worried about you." Or "Your husband is very worried about you?"
Clarifying	The nurse makes an effort to have the patient clarify comments

	that are vague.			
	• "You spoke so softly I did not hear what you said."			
	• "I'm not able to follow that thought; could you tell me a			
Validating	little more about it?" "I'm having some difficulty. Could you help me understand?"			
<u>-</u>	"That gives whole new meaning to the word nervous," (said with			
Humor	shared kidding between the nurse and the patient).			
Presenting reality:	An effort is made to indicate what is real from unreal. Ex. Your			
resenting reality.	mother is not here; I'm a nurse.			
Summarizing:	A concise review of the main ideas that have been discussed. Ex.			
	"From what you describe, your family seems"			
Paraphrasing	Restating another's message more briefly and in your own words;			
	lets another know you are actively seeking understanding of what			
	they are saying.			
the contract of the contract o	nmunication techniques that help to develop patients'			
self-awareness	It is used to contain an law alaments on concents of a massacra			
Focusing:	It is used to center on key elements or concepts of a message; used to guide direction of conversation to an important area.			
	Ex. "You touched on his drinking. Tell me more about that."			
Encouraging plan	It helps the client develop steps to make changes and solve			
formation	problems			
Confronting	The nurse supports the client but directly challenges inaction on			
	the part of the client			
	Ex. "You keep telling me that you want to quit drinking, but what			
	actions have you taken thus far to aid with your sobriety?"			
Encouraging	For example: "What are your feelings in regard to?			
evaluation	Does this contribute to your discomfort?"			
Giving recognition	For example: I noticed that you've combed your hair			
Verbalizing the implied	i.e An attempt to detect the true meaning of the implied verbal			
	messages . For example :			
	• Client: "My wife pushes me around just like my mother &			
	sister do."			
	Nurse: "Is it your impression that women are domineering?"			
Attempting to translate	For example :			
into feelings	• Client: "I've been in the hospital for 6 weeks. I might as			
mto reemigs	well be dead."			
	Nurse: "You think that you're not getting better?"			
Encouraging	i.e. Asking client to compare similarities and differences in ideas,			
comparison	experiences, or interpersonal relationships			
Exploring	i.e. Delivering further into a subject, idea, experience, or			
	relationship			
Giving information	i.e. giving the patient facts or specific information that is needed			
	Questions are answered simply and directed			
	Examples: My name is			
	Visiting hours are			
Voicine desilet	My purpose in being here is			
Voicing doubt	For example: Isn't that unusual? Really? That's hard to believe.			
Positive reinforcement	Ex. I see you are clean today Ex. I see you are dresses nicely			
Setting Limit	i.e. approaching the patient with firm behavior, but accepting			
	attitude, and rejecting the maladaptive behavior, but accepting			
	the person			

	For example. "Mr. D, I really enjoy playing monopoly with you, but I don't like when you swear. I am wondering if you can express your angry feeling in another manner.		
	For example: Spitting in the floor is not accepted. Ex. Your loud		
	voice is un accepted in communicating your concern.		
Process Recordings	i.e. Writing reports of verbal interactions with clients. They are written by the nurse or student as a tool for improving		
	communication techniques.		

#### 1.1.4. Non-therapeutic Communication Techniques

- <u>Asking Personal Questions</u>: personal questions that <u>are not relevant</u> to the situation are nosy and intrusive.
- <u>Giving Personal Opinions:</u> takes decision making away from client; imposes the health professional's ideas on the client
- <u>Changing the Subject:</u> shifts the focus of conversation from one topic to another unrelated topic; rude and shows lack of empathy.
- <u>Automatic Response</u>: trite phrases that move the focus away from the client, block expression of the client's ideas and feelings and interfere with the problem-solving process.
- <u>False Reassurance:</u> promises something that may not happen, says something that is untrue or attempts to provide comfort in an incongruent manner.
- Sympathy: focuses on the nurse's feelings rather than the client's.
- Asking for Explanations ("Why" questions): makes the client feel defensive and that they must give an explanation for their feelings or behavior
- <u>Approval or Disapproval:</u> is judgmental behavior. It often invalidates the client's opinions or feelings.
- <u>Defensive Response:</u> occurs when the health professional supports some aspect of the health care system in response to a negative comment by a client.
- Passive or Aggressive Response:
  - <u>Passive Responses</u>: avoid conflict; and sidestep the topic: fail to explore feelings and thoughts with the client by stepping around the real issue.
  - <u>Aggressive Responses</u>: provoke confrontation at the other person's expense
  - <u>Arguing:</u> challenging or arguing against perceptions denies that they are real and valid to the other person.

The table below showcases the items as well as the assessor guide for using therapeutic communication.

# **Chapter 2. Assessment Skills**

- 2.1. History Taking
- 2.2. Mental State Examination (MSE)

## 2.1. History Taking

'The patient past psychiatric history' is a structured assessment conducted to generate a comprehensive picture of a patient's mental, social and physical health problems. Taking a disease history of a psychiatric patient requires skills necessary for examinations and diagnosis. It also provides feedback regarding the risk factors in the patient's life based on biopsychosocial assessment model. It tests both the communication skills as well as knowledge about what to ask. Specific questions vary depending on what type of history is taken but if follow the general framework stated below is followed, students will gain good marks in these stations. This also offers an opportunity to the student for presenting ones history. In practice, the students may sometimes need to gather a collateral history from a relative, friend or caregivers. This may be a child or an adult with an impaired mental state. The table below showcases the items as well as the assessor guide for history taking.

# **Chapter 3. Symptoms Management**

- 3.1. Nursing Management of Patient with Hallucination
- 3.2. Nursing Management of Patient with Delusion
- 3.3. Nursing Management for Suicidal Patient
- 3.4. Nursing Management for Aggressive Patient
- 3.5. Physical Restraint Application

## 3.1. Nursing Management of Patient with Hallucination

Hallucination is defined as an alteration in perception without external stimuli. Perception is the process by which people translate sensory impressions into a coherent and unified view of the world around them. Though necessarily based on incomplete and unverified (or unreliable) information, perception is equated with reality for most practical purposes and guides human behavior in general.

Ohayon (2000) found that out of a sample of 13,000 adults, 38.7% reported experiencing hallucinations, 6.4% had hallucinations once a month, 2.7% had them once a week and 2.4% had them more than once a week.

It is evident that certain diseases or disorders are associated with specific types of hallucinations. Patients with a diagnosis of psychotic or anxiety disorders are more likely to suffer from visual and auditory hallucinations, while drug users are more likely to suffer from tactile hallucinations. Schneider and Dagerman (2004) stated that 40-50% of patients diagnosed with Alzheimer's disease developed hallucinations in the latter stages of the illness. It was also found that hallucinations in children are rarely experienced under the age of eight; however, approximately 40% of children diagnosed with schizophrenia suffer from visual or auditory hallucinations. The National Sleep Foundation (2007) supported studies in both the US and the UK (Ohayon, 2000), looking at people during normal sleep and wake cycles. They found that 30-37% of adults had experienced hypnagogic hallucinations, which occur just before falling asleep, and 10-12% of adults reported hypnopompic hallucinations, which occur as a person awakens.

There are different types of hallucination which may involve all five senses hearing, sight, touch, taste, and smell. Although auditory and visual hallucinations are the most common ones experienced by patients, other types may affect different senses. These include touch, where the person has the feeling that creatures may be crawling over the skin (tactile hallucinations), experiencing a peculiar taste (gustatory hallucinations) or a peculiar smell (olfactory hallucinations). It must be remembered that although these experiences are not real to carers and nurses, they are very real to patients. Thus, it is important to relay to patients that you believe they are experiencing them. Auditory hallucinations shown by hearing one or more voices talking are associated with people with psychotic disorders, particularly schizophrenia. Florid hallucinations are associated with taking hallucinogenic drugs, sleep deprivation or neurological illness.

The nurse's role is crucial since people experiencing hallucinations may also have disturbed thoughts and may become disinterested in others and their surroundings. They may also find it difficult to maintain interpersonal skills and

# **Chapter 4. Treatment Modalities**

- 4.1. Non-pharmacological: Activity Therapy
  - 4.1.1. Activity Done with Psychiatric Patient
  - 4.1.2. Occupational therapy
  - 4.1.3. Animal Assisted therapy
  - 4.1.4. Recreational therapy
  - 4.1.5. Industrial therapy
  - 4.1.6. Bibliotherapy
  - 4.1.7. Music therapy
- 4.2. Conducting Psycho-education
- 4.3. Pharmacological Treatment Modalities
- 4.4. Somatic Therapies

# 4.1. Non-pharmacological: Activity Therapy

#### 4.1.1. Activity Done with Psychiatric Patient

Activity therapy is medically prescribed and professionally guided programs of work and play for individuals as well as in groups. In this unique treatment, the client chooses an activity, such as game or sport. Then it becomes part of the therapy as client and therapist build a relationship around the activity.

#### **Aim of Activity Therapy**

- 1. To help patients develop self esteem.
- 2. To provide suitable outlets for aggression and excess energy for the Disturbed patient.
- 3. They develop social skills and improve communication with others through the creation of a social atmosphere.
- 4. To promote and enhance quality of life
- 5. To enhance or maintain physical and cognitive abilities
- 6. To promote emotional and psychosocial well-being
- 7. To offer opportunity for creative expression, decision making, choice, and responsibility
- 8. To offer relaxation and promote independence
- 9. To provide opportunity for fun, enjoyment, common interests and experiences
- 10. To provide opportunity to learn new skills, or adapt old skills

#### How to Choose the Appropriate Activity Therapy for Patients

- According to physician written order
- According to patient's age, sex,
- Mental disorders stage, severity, chronicity and acuteness.
- Physical ability and capacity to participate.

#### **General Principles Guiding the Activity Therapy**

- 1. Patients must be brought to the highest possible degree of physical, mental, social and economic.
- Patient's socialization and to assist him in the development of the new personal relationship.
- 3. To improve his adjustment to hospital life
- 4. Type of therapy must be adjusted to patient needs
- 5. Provide a sense of achievement.
- 6. Outlets for suppressed or repressed emotions.

## 4.2. Conducting Psycho-education

• <u>Psychoeducation</u> refers to the process of providing education and information to those seeking or receiving mental health services, such as people diagnosed with mental health conditions (or life-threatening/ terminal illnesses) and their family members.

http://www.aipc.net.au/articles/psychoeducation-definition-goals-and-methods

#### The Purpose of Psychoeducation is

- Help people better understand (and become accustomed to living with) mental health
- Reduce rehospitalization rates and decrease the number of days a person spends in the hospital.
- Increased compliance with treatment regimens through developing patients' orientation regarding the positive and negative effects of any psychotropic medications
- Plays a vital role in the DE stigmatization of mental health conditions.

#### Understanding the Process and format of Psychoeducation:

Psychoeducation may be offered in both individual and group formats, it can benefit the individual who is diagnosed, parents and other family members, as well as caregivers and friends. It is not an approach to treatment in itself but represents an important early step in treatment of psychiatric patients. Psychoeducation may be general or highly specified and can be provided in a number of ways, though it is broadly steered by four main goals: transfer of information, medication and treatment support, training and support in self-help and self-care, and the provision of a safe place to vent emotional frustrations. (Reyes, 2010)

#### All of the Following May Constitute Psychoeducation:

- Individual base: as when the nurse explains the ways a mental health condition might impact patient's function or, a psychiatrist describing how a prescribed medication can counteract symptoms of a mental health condition
- **Group format:** such as a psychiatric hospital providing support and education to family members of those receiving treatment through:
  - Formal classes designed to educate the population about both specific mental health conditions and mental health in general

# 4.3. Pharmacological Treatment Modalities

#### **Psychotropic Medication Education**

Psychotropic drugs are prescribed to treat a variety of mental health issues when those issues cause significant impairment to healthy functioning. Psychotropic drugs typically work by changing or balancing the number of important chemicals in the brain called neurotransmitters. Some mental health issues show improvement when neurotransmitters such as dopamine, serotonin, and norepinephrine are increased or decreased. Psychotropic drugs are usually prescribed by a psychiatrist, a psychiatric nurse practitioner (PMHNP), or a primary care physician; in some areas, clinical psychologists may have prescriptive privileges as well.

Certain individuals who are prescribed psychiatric medications may prefer not to take them, or they find that these medications do not improve their symptoms enough to outweigh any side effects or risks. A cause of concern to many is the practice of prescribing medications that were originally developed for adults to children. The increase in diagnoses of psychiatric conditions in children---bipolar in particular---has led to an increase in the number of children who take psychiatric medications, some of which have only been fully tested in adults. Though these medications have been shown to help relieve at least some symptoms in minors, at least for the short-term, questions have been raised about the long-term effects that some of the medications might have on developing children and whether these children actually have conditions that were originally thought to only exist in adults.

#### **Types of Psychotropic Medications**

Several different types of medications are used to treat mental health conditions. The following is a list of the major categories of psychotropic medications:

Antipsychotics: These medications are most often prescribed for the treatment of psychotic issues such as schizophrenia. These drugs fall into two categories, typical such as; Stelazine (trifluoperazine), Prolixin (fluphenazine), Moban (molindone), Mellaril (thioridazine) and Haldol (haloperidol) and atypical antipsychotics include: Abilify (aripiprazole), Clozaril (clozapine),Geodon (ziprasidone),Risperdal (risperidone) ,Seroquel (quetiapine),and Zyprexa (olanzapine).

Antidepressants are a broad category of psychotropic drugs used for treating

# 4.4. Somatic Therapies

Somatic therapy is one of the best ways to help patients suffering from psychological traumas in order to cope, recover and lead a normal life. In some cases, past traumas may manifest physical symptoms like pain, digestive issues, hormonal imbalances, sexual dysfunction and immune system dysfunction, medical issues, depression, anxiety, and addiction.

#### **Types of Somatic Therapy:**

- Electro Convulsive Therapy (ECT)
- Phototherapy
- Sleep deprivation

#### **Electroconvulsive Therapy (ECT)**

Electroconvulsive therapy (ECT) is a somatic therapy done under general anesthesia, in which small electric currents are passed through the brain, intentionally triggering a brief seizure. ECT seems to cause changes in brain chemistry that can quickly reverse symptoms of certain mental illnesses. ECT often works when other treatments are unsuccessful and when the full course of treatment is completed, but it may not work for everyone. It often works when other treatments are unsuccessful.

It is an artificially induced Seizure with voltage 110-170 run through patient mind or brain with 2 electrolyte electrodes applied either unilateral or bilateral for 0.3-0.5 min)

Much of the stigma attached to ECT is based on early treatments in which high doses of electricity were administered without anesthesia, leading to memory loss, fractured bones, and other serious side effects. ECT is much safer today. Although ECT still causes some side effects, it now uses electric currents given in a controlled setting to achieve the most benefit with the fewest possible risks.

ECT is done through using 2 electrodes applied unilateral or bilateral (on both temples) through electric currents voltage 70-110 volts for 0.2 to 0.5 minutes to change the mood.

#### ECT is effective to treat patients who are:

- Acutely suicidal.
- Mood disorders especially Major Depressive Disorder (MDD)even in elderly people.
- Bipolar Disorder (Mania)

# Acknowledgements

I am grateful to God almighty for the guidance and support provided to me throughout the writing of this book.

I wish to express my sincere gratitude to Dr. Nusrat Bano assistant professor clinical pharmacology for her editing and support to complete the task of accomplishing this book.

I would like to extend my Thanks to my pretty daughters and husband for their assistance and patience in accomplishing the task of completing this book.

#### Acknowledgements

- [1] About Recreational Therapy. (n.d.). Retrieved October 02, 2017, from https://nctrc.org/about-ncrtc/about-recreational-therapy/
- [2] Activity Therapy. (n.d.). Retrieved October 02, 2017, from https://retreat.sheppardpratt.org/therapies-treatment/activity-therapy/
- [3] American Psychiatric Association (2013). Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 5th ed. American Psychiatric Publishing, Washington, DC, London, England.
- [4] American Psychiatric Nurse Association (2015), Endorsed by the APNA Board of Directors February 27, 2015. Suicide management.
- [5] APA MLA Chicago Creek, J., Lougher, L., & Bruggen, H. V. (2011). Occupational therapy and mental health. Edinburgh: Churchill Livingstone/Elsevie
- [6] Bauml, J., Froböse, T., Kraemer, S., Rentrop, M., Pitschel-Walz, G. (2006, October), Psychoeducation: A basic psychotherapeutic intervention for patients with schizophrenia and their families. Schizophrenia Bulletin, 32(Supplement 1), S1-S9. Retrieved from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2683741
- [7] Boyd MA. Psychiatric Nursing Contemporary Practice 2nd edition. Philadelphia: Lippincott Publications; 2001esidents with and without dementia". American Journal of Alzheimer's disease & Other Dementias. 26 (1): 44–50. Doi:10.1177/1533317510387585. PMID 21282277.o@crisisprevention.com
- [8] CARSTAIRS GM, CLARK DH, O'CONNOR N. Occupational treatment of chronic psychotics; observations in Holland, Belgium, and France. Lancet. 1955 Nov 12; 269(6898):1025–1030. [PubMed]
- [9] Clinical Nursing Skills Techniques, Sixth Edition, by Anne Griffin Perry, RN, MSN, EdD, FAAN; and Patricia A. Potter, RN, PhD, CMAC, FAAN, and prepared by Patricia A.Castaldi, RN, BSN, MSN, St. Louis: Elsevier/Mosby, 2006.prevention.com0 10850 W. Park Place, Suite 600 crisisprevention.com850 W. Park Place, Suite 600
- [10] Dallas, M. E. (2014, January 09). 8 Solo Activities for Managing Depression and Loneliness. Retrieved October 07, 2017, from https://www.everydayhealth.com/hs/major-depression-pictures/solo-activities-for-depression-loneliness/#02
- [11] Dziopa, F. & Ahern, K. (2009). What makes a quality therapeutic relationship in psychiatric/mental health nursing: A review of the research literature? The Internet Journal of Advanced Nursing Practice, 10(1), 1-19.
- [12] Eby, L. & Brown, N., (2009). Mental Health Nursing Care, 2nd ed. Pearson Prentice Hall.
- [13] Electroconvulsive Therapy (ECT) , October 21, 2017, Seattle NTC https://www.seattlentc.com/services/electroconvulsive-therapy-ect/
- [14] Electroconvulsive therapy (ECT), October 21, 2017, Electroconvulsive therapy (ECT) | Mind, the mental health charity help for mental health problems https://www.mind.org.uk/information-support/drugs-and-treatments/electroconvulsive-thera py-ect/#.WeHj0sJrzIU
- [15] Electroconvulsive Therapy, June 27, 2017, Overview, Preparation, Technique https://emedicine.medscape.com/article/15259

- [16] Evans D, Wood J, Lambert L (Feb 2003). "Patient injury and physical restraint devices: a systematic review". Journal of Advanced Nursing. 41 (3): 274–82. doi:10.1046/j.1365-2648.2003.02501.x. PMID 12581115.
- [17] Fakhr-Movahedi A, Negarandeh R, Salsali M. Exploring Nurse-Patient Communication Strategies. Hayat Journal of Faculty of Nursing & Midwifery. 2012; 18(4): 28–46.
- [18] Ferguson, C.J.; Beaver, K.M. (2009). "Natural Born Killers: The Genetic Origins of Extreme Violence". Aggression and Violent Behavior 14 (5): 286-294. (Internet Document) Available rom: http://www.tamiu.edu/~cferguson/NBK.pdf.
- [19] Gabbard, G. (August, 2000). A neurobiologically informed perspective on psychotherapy. Retrieved from http://bjp.rcpsych.org/content/177/2/117.abstract.
- [20] Goverover, Y., Strober, L., Chiaravalloti, N., & DeLuca, J. (2015, March 01). Factors That Moderate Activity Limitation and Participation Restriction in People With Multiple Sclerosis. Retrieved October 02, 2017, from https://ajot.aota.org/article.aspx?articleid=2109140
- [21] Grohol, J. M. (2013). Top 25 psychiatric prescriptions for 2013. Retrieved from http://psychcentral.com/lib/top-25-psychiatric-medication-prescriptions-for-2013. http://currentnursing.com/pn/nursing\_care\_ECT.html, http://www.authorstream.com/Presentation/RAJAN\_123-795662-suicide/info@crisisprevent ion.coon.co. "Patient injury and physical restraint device. doj.1365-2648.2003 12581115.
- [22] Group Therapy: 32 Activities, Worksheets and Discussion Topics for Adults and Teens. (2017, August 01). Retrieved October 07, 2017, from https://positivepsychologyprogram.com/group-therapy/
- [23] https://psychcentral.com/blog/archives/2014/09/12/how-somatic-therapy-can-help-patients-s uffering-from-psychological-trauma/
- [24] Joint Commission Standards on Restraint and Seclusion/ Nonviolent Crisis Intervention® Training Program 2009 CPI (reprinted 2010). All rights reserved.10850 W. Park Place, Suite 600
- [25] Keltner LN, Schwecke L H, Bostrom CE. Psychiatric nursing 4th ed. Philadelphia: Mosby publications; 1999.
- [26] Kemery, S. (n.d.). Mental Health Directorate MIND Essentials, 58-60. Retrieved October 01, 2917 from https://www.health.qld.gov.au/\_\_data/assets/pdf\_file/0021/444630/hallucinations.pdf
- [27] Kneisl, C & Trigoboff, E (2013). Contemporary Psychiatric-Mental Health Nursing, 3rd ed., Pearson Education.
- [28] Luo H, Lin M, Castle N (Feb 2011). "Physical restraint use and falls in nursing homes: a comparison between residents with and without dementia". American Journal of Alzheimer's Disease & Other Dementias. 26 (1): 44-50. doi:10.1177/1533317510387585. PMID 21282277
- [29] Lynne Walsh. (2007, July 22). Caring for patients who experience hallucinations. Retrieved October 10, 2017, from https://www.nursingtimes.net/roles/mental-health-nurses/caring-for-patients-who-experience -hallucinations/199238.article
- [30] Martha Sajatovic. (2016, December 13). 5 ways to quiet auditory hallucinations.. Retrieved October 10, 2017, from http://www.mdedge.com/currentpsychiatry/article/59961/5-ways-quiet-auditory-hallucinations
- [31] Mary C. Townsend (2008) Essentials of Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing by (fourth

- edition) Last Updated: 09-9-2016
- [32] Mayo Clinic. (n.d.). Depression (major depression). Retrieved from http://www.mayoclinic.com/health/antidepressants/MH00071.
- [33] Mental disorders affect one in four people. (2001, October 4). Retrieved from http://www.who.int/whr/2001/media\_centre/press\_release/en.
- [34] Mental Health Treatments. (2015, August 20). Retrieved October 07, 2017, from http://www.mentalhealthamerica.net/types-mental-health-treatments
- [35] Moyer, KE. (1968) Kinds of aggression and their physiological basis. Communications in Behavioral Biology; 2A:65-87
- [36] National Institute of Mental Health. (n.d.). Mental health medications. Retrieved from http://www.nimh.nih.gov/health/publications/mental-health-medications/compelte-index.sht ml#pub8.
- [37] National Institute on Drug Abuse. (n.d.). InfoFacts: Stimulant ADHD medications methylphenidate and amphetamines. Retrieved from http://www.drugabuse.gov/publications/infofacts/stimulant-adhd-medications-methylphenida te-amphetamines.
- [38] NIH/National Institute of Mental Health (2007, July 4).
- [39] Nursing Care in ECT, October 21, 2017 http://currentnursing.com/pn/nursing\_care\_ECT.html
- [40] Papadantonaki A. (2012) Nursing Role.;51(1):7–9.
- [41] Psychoeducation/psychoeducational interventons. (n.d.). Retrieved from https://www.ons.org/intervention/psychoeducationpsychoeducational-interventions
- [42] Psychoeducation: Definition, goals and methods. (2014, June 16). Retrieved from http://www.aipc.net.au/articles/psychoeducation-definition-goals-and-methods
- [43] Reyes, C. Y. (2010, October 22). What is psycho-education? Retrieved from http://thepsychoeducationalteacher.blogspot.com/2010/10/what-is-psycho-education.html
- [44] Schultltz, J. & Videbeck, S. (2013). Lippincott's Manual of Psychiatric Nursing Care Plan, 9th ed., Wolters Kluwer Health Lippincott Williams & Wilkins.
- [45] ScienceDaily. Retrieved August 30, 2011, from http://www.sciencedaily.com/release(internet document)
- [46] Seligman, M. (1995, December). The effectiveness of psychotherapy: The consumer reports study. Retrieved from http://horan.asu.edu/cpy702readings/seligman/seligman.html.
- [47] Shechtman Z., (2009) Treating Child and Adolescent Aggression Through Bibliotherapy, The Springer Series on Human Exceptionality, DOI 10.1007/978-0-387-09745-9\_2, Springer SciencebBusiness Media, LLC
- [48] Somatic Therapy, October 21, 2017, Psychology Today https://www.psychologytoday.com/therapy-types/somatic-therapy
- [49] Stuart GW, Lararia MT. (2013, September 9). Nursing Management of Delusions and Hallucinations. Retrieved October 10, 2017, from http://currentnursing.com/pn/nursing\_management\_delusions\_hallucinations.html
- [50] Stuart GW, Laria MT. (2001) Principles and Practices of Psychiatric Nursing. Ist ed. Philadelphia: Mosby Publishers.
- [51] Stuart, G. (2013). Principles and Practice of Psychiatric Nursing, 10th ed., Mosby.

- [52] Teeple RC, Caplan JP, Stern TA (2009). "Visual Hallucinations: Differential Diagnosis and Treatment". Primary Care Companion to the Journal of Clinical Psychiatry. 11 (1): 26–32. PMC 2660156 Freely accessible. PMID 19333408. doi:10.4088/PCC.08r00673.
- [53] Teeple, R. (2016, June 25). What Are Hallucinations? Retrieved October 10, 2017, from https://www.webmd.com/brain/what-are-hallucinations#2-5
- [54] The CMS Restraint Training Requirements Handbook (2016) is published by HCPro, a division of BLR. HCPro, a division of BLRAll rights reserved. Printed in the United States of America. 5 4 3 2 1 ISBN: 978-1-55645-939-9No
- [55] Townsend M C Psychiatric mental health nursing- concepts of care. 5 th edn. Philadelphia: F.A Dais Company; 2005.
- [56] Townsend, M.C. (2011): Essentials of Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing, 5th ed. Philadelphia. F.A. Davis Company.
- [57] Types of somatic therapy, October 21, 2017, Quizlet https://quizlet.com/172863660/3-types-of-somatic-therapy-flash-cards
- [58] Varcarolis, E. (2011): Manual of Psychiatric Nursing Care Plans. Diagnoses, Clinical Tools, and Psychopharmacology, 4th ed., Elsevier, Saunders.
- [59] Varcarolis, E. (2013): Essentials of Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing. A communication approach to evidence-based care. 2nd ed. Elsevier, Saunders.
- [60] Varcarolis, E., & Halter, M. J. (2010): foundations of Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing. A clinical approach. 6th ed. Elsevier, Saunders.
- [61] Videbeck, Sheila L. Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing (3rd ed. 2006). Lippincott Williams & Wilkins. Webster's Dictionary (1985, p. 148)
- [62] What is occupational Therapy? (n.d.). Retrieved October 02, 2017, from https://www.otaus.com.au/about/what-is-occupational-therapy
- [63] Wheeler, K. (2014). Psychotherapy for the advanced practice psychiatric nurse: A how to guide for evidenced based practice (2nd ed.). St. Louis: Mosby Inc.

# Author's Biography

Dr. Amal I. Khalil got her Ph.D. in 2004, and was promoted as an Assistant Professor of Psychiatry and mental health nursing in 2013 by Supreme Council of Universities, Cairo University, Egypt. Dr. Khalil works at Faculty of Nursing, Menoufyia University in Shebin-Alkom, Egypt. From 2005 to 2009, she worked as an Assistant Professor in Applied Sciences Private University, Jordan. Currently, Dr. Khalil is working in College of Nursing, King Saud bin Abdul-Aziz University, Jeddah, for health sciences, where she was awarded many times for her teaching activities, community and social contributions. She was nominated as a reviewer to the Journal of Horizon Research Publishing, USA, International Journal of Nursing and Clinical Practices and International Journal of Research in Nursing. Dr. Khalil has more than 20 publications and presents many researches in both national and international conferences. In addition to teaching and researches activates, she had worked as a psychotherapist and counselor at a private practice in Egypt and had membership in APNA (American Psychiatric Nurse Association), family and child safety program related to National Guard health affairs, Saudi Arabia, and KAFA institution for smoking and addiction management, KSA.

ISBN 978-1-943484-19-5

